
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, APRIL 7, 2015 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 PROCLAMATION – MOTORCYCLE AWARENESS MONTH 
  
 
             REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
 

    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the March 17, 2015 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting 

 
2. RES. NO. R-60-15 

A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Kenneth C. Watson, Jr. as a City Employee 
 

3. RES. NO. R-61-15 
A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of David A. Short as a City Employee 
 

 OLD BUSINESS 
 

4. ORD. NO. 4-15 (3rd Reading) 
An Ordinance amending Section 94.21 of the Piqua Code, relating to fees for use of Park Facilities 

 
5. RES. NO. R-33-15 (Tabled 3-3-2015) 

A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to the KE Rose Company for purchase and installation of 
specialized equipment in Police Vehicles 
 

 NEW BUSINESS 
 

6. RES. NO. R-62-15  
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Lease Agreement to permit the usage of a 
portion of Lock Nine Park and Linear Park to Mainstreet Piqua 

 
7. RES. NO. R-63-15 

A Resolution authorizing a three year lease with Piqua Youth Baseball and Softball Association 
(PYBSA) 
 

8. RES. NO. R-64-15  
A Resolution awarding a contract to Consolidated Fabricators for the purchase of an exhaust and 
inlet system for #9 gas turbine 
 

9. RES. NO. R-65-15 
A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Franklin Equipment LLC for the purchase of a new 
Wheel Loader for the Public Works Department 



 2

 
 

10. RES. NO. R-66-15 
A Resolution repealing Resolutions No.’s R-110-07 and R-65-09 establishing a naming policy for 
City Streets and Facilities 
 

11. RES. NO. R-67-15 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Grissom Construction, LLC for the Sidewalk ADA Compliance 
Program 
 

12. RES. NO. R-68-15  
A Resolution requesting final legislation to enter into an agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) for the CR 25A Phase III Reconstruction project 
 

13. RES. NO. R-69-15  
A Resolution awarding a contract to Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. for the 2015 Street Resurfacing 
Program 

 
14. RES. NO. R-70-15 

A Resolution granting a utility easement to the City of Piqua 
 

15. RES. NO. R-71-15 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Lease Agreement to permit the usage of a 
portion of Lock Nine Park and Linear Park to Mainstreet Piqua and Piqua Arts Council 

 
 PUBLIC COMMENT  

(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
 ADJOURNMENT   



 1

MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 

Tuesday, March 17, 2015 7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, and Martin.  Absent: Vogt. 
 
Moved by Commissioner  Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry,  to excuse Commissioner 
Vogt from the March 17, 2015 Regular City Commission Meeting. Voice vote: Aye: Martin, Wilson, 
Fess, and Terry. Nay: None. 
 
Mayor Fess acknowledged Cub Scout Troup 365 from Troy, Ohio who were in attendance after 
taking a tour of the City Government Offices. Mayor Fess asked each member to give their name. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to remove the Amended 
Minutes of the March 3, 2015 from the table and include in the Consent Agenda. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

      Consent Agenda 
 
.     Approval of Minutes  
     
       Approval of the minutes from the February 17, 2015 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
 
       Approval of the minutes from the March 3, 2015 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
 
       RES. NO. R-37-15 
       A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of William J. Collins as a City 
       Employee 
 
       RES. NO. R-38-15 
       A Resolution reappointing a member to the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission 
 
       RES. NO. R-39-15 
       A Resolution reappointing an alternate member to the Miami Valley Regional Planning  
       Commission 
 
        RES. NO. R-40-15 
        A Resolution reappointing an alternate member to the Miami Valley Regional Planning  
        Commission 
 
        RES. NO. R-41-15 
        A Resolution reappointing a member to the Downtown District Design Review Board 
 
        RES. NO. R-42-15 
        A Resolution reappointing a member to the Energy Board 
 
        RES. NO. R-43-15 
        A Resolution reappointing a member to the Golf Advisory Board 
  
        RES. NO. R-44-15 
        A Resolution reappointing a member to the Golf Advisory Board 
 
 



 2

       RES. NO. R-45-15 
       A Resolution appointing a member to the Park Board 
 
       RES. NO. R-46-15 
       A Resolution appointing a member to the Park Board 

 
       RES. NO. R-47-15 
       A Resolution appointing a member to the Stormwater Utility Board 
 
      RES. NO. R-48-15 
      A Resolution appointing a member to the Tree Committee 
 
      RES. NO. R-49-15 
      A Resolution appointing a member to the Tree Committee 
 
      RES. NO. R-50-15 
      A Resolution reappointing a member to the Planning Commission 
 
       RES. NO. R-51-15 
       A Resolution appointing a member to the Planning Commission 
           
       Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to approve the Consent  
       Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried  
       unanimously 
 
       OLD BUSINESS  
      
        ORD. No. 4-15 
        An Ordinance amending Section 94.21 of the Piqua Code, relating to fees for use of Park 
        Facilities 
 
        Brian Brookhart, Assistant Public Works Director, provided the Staff Report. 
 
        The Park Board members unanimously approved raising the fees relating to the use of Park  
         Facilities. The last time the fees for Park Facilities were raised was in 2009, stated Mr.  
         Brookhart.  The increase in fees will help offset the operating cost and maintenance on the 
         buildings. The proposed increases provides a discounted rate to those who live within the Piqua  
         corporation limits.  There was discussion on the rental on the house located in Hollow Park.  Law  
         Director Stacy Wall stated she is still waiting on additional information regarding the house lease. 
 
         Mayor Fess stated this is the second reading of Ordinance No. 4-15. 

 
   Ordinance No. 4-15 was given a second reading. 
 
  NEW BUSINESS 
 

        RES. NO. R-52-15 
        A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for, accept, and enter into a supplemental  
        Water Pollution Control Loan Fund agreement on behalf of the City of Piqua for Planning, Design 
        and/or Construction of Wastewater Facilities; and designation a dedicated repayment source for  
        the loan  
         
         Dave Davis, Wastewater Plant Superintendent provided the Staff Report 

 
 
 



 3

  The amended facility plan calls for a new and approved liquid treatment trail that will handle all 
  projected flows.  This information was presented to the City Commission at the February Work   
  Session, and is also approved by the OEPA .The amended plan requires the City perform 
  detailed design but the original loan amount requested will not cover the cost for this option. The City  
  will submit a supplemental loan application to WPCLF-DEFA for the additional funds needed, stated  
  Mr. Davis. 
         
 There was discussion on how the funds would be paid back, at what rate, and the total amount to be   
  borrowed at this time. 
 
 Mr. Davis provided the information. 
        
  Public Comment 
 
 No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-52-15. 
  
  Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-52-15  
  be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried  
  unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-52-15 adopted. 
     
  RES. NO. R-53-15 
  A Resolution amending the agreement with LJB, Inc. for the right-of-way acquisition services for  
  the Garnsey Street/Commercial Street Corridor Neighborhood Connector Project  
                
  Amy Havenar, City Engineer, provided the Staff Report. 
 
  In September of 2014 the City Commission approved the agreement with LJB for the Right-of-Way   
  Acquisition Services for the Garnsey Street/Commercial Street Corridor Neighborhood Connector  
  Project. Since LJB began their extensive research into the right-of-way for this project, this 
  prompted the Miami County Tax Map Department to make revisions to the county map records,  
  which significantly impacted the project, stated Ms. Havenar.  
 
   As a result additional research will be necessary to be able to adequately identify the ownership of   
  the parcels along Commercial Street, as well as have LJB, Inc. draw up the right-of-way plans and  
  complete title searches & reports, appraisals, acquisitions, and title updates & closing as part of the 
  right-of-way acquisition process. 
 
 There was discussion and questions regarding the quiet titles and what they are, if any of the property  
 owners would lose or gain additional footage to their properties, and how the bike path would be 
 affected.  Ms. Havenar and Dan Hoying of LJB provided information to questions and concerns. 
 
 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-53-15. 
      
 Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-53- 
 15 be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Martin, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried  
 unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-53-15 adopted. 
     
 RES. NO. R-54-15 
  A Resolution authorizing a three year lease with the Piqua Youth Football Association 
 
 RES. NO. R-55-15 
A Resolution authorizing a three year lease with the Piqua Youth Soccer Association (PYSA) 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall provided the Staff Report for both Resolution R-54-15 and R-55-15.. 
 



 4

Ms. Wall stated both of these are three-year renewal of previous contract and have had long term 
agreements with both the Soccer Association, and the Youth Football Association. There are no 
changes to either of the contracts at this time.    
       
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-54-15 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-54-15 and 
R-55-25 be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Wilson, and Fess.  Nay, None.  Mayor Fess then  
 declared Resolutions No. R-54-15 and R-55-15 adopted. 
 
 RES. NO. R-56-15 
  A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Bobcat Company for the purchase of an excavator,   
 attachments and utility vehicle 
 
 Todd Brandenburg, Underground Utilities Superintendent, provided the Staff Report. 
 
  The Bobcat E63 excavator will replace the department’s aging backhoe with newer technology, 
   compact size, and the versatility to perform various tasks. This piece of equipment was   
   demonstrated by the Underground Utilities Staff and they determined it to be the best piece of  
   equipment to replace the existing backhoe.  The excavator portion of the purchase will be through  
   the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program, and will total $88,062.85 including the     
   attachments.  This resolution also includes the purchase of a Bobcat 3400 Utility Vehicle also on the  
   State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program totaling $20,489.68 and will include a road package  
   allowing staff to utilize this piece of equipment for various maintenance tasks, stated Mr.  
   Brandenburg. 
 
   Public Comment 

 
   No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-56-15 
 
   Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-56-15 be  
   adopted.  Roll call, Aye:  Martin, Terry, Wilson, and Fess. Nay, None.  Mayor Fess then  
   declared Resolution No. R-56-15 adopted. 
 
   Mayor Fess stated the Law Director has asked the Commission to permanently table Resolutions R- 
   57-15, R-58-15, and R-59-15 stating they have received the necessary signatures and do not need  
   the Resolutions. 
 
   RES. NO. R-57-15 
   A Resolution to authorize the commencement of the appropriation of right-of-way on 1712 Park  
   Avenue, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County, Ohio for public  
   Purposes 
 
   RES. NO. R-58-15 
    A Resolution to authorize the commencement of the appropriation of right-of-way on 230 W. High  
   Street, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County, Ohio for public  
   Purposes 
 
   RES. NO. R-59-15 
   A Resolution to authorize the commencement of the appropriation of right-of-way on 1846 Park  
   Avenue, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County, Ohio for public  
   Purposes 
 
   Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to table Resolutions No, R-57- 
   15, R-58-15, and R-59-15 permanently. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None.  
   Motion carried unanimously to permanently table Resolutions R-57-15, R-58-15, and R-59-15. 
 



 5

   MONTHLY REPORTS - JANUARY 2015 
 
    Monthly Reports were accepted. 
 
    Public Comment   
 
    No one came forward to speak at this time. 
 
    City Manager’s Report 
 
    City Manager Huff stated the bids are out for paving services this year and they plan to start 
    earlier this year. 
 
    Also the Public Works Department has made paving and patching a top priority this year, and will  
    begin working soon.  
 
    City Manager Huff announced the Joint Local Government Innovations Grant has been approved  
    with the Miami County Parks District, Covington, Bradford, and the Johnston Farm to extend the  
    Trail System to the east, west, and north. 
 
    City Manager Huff also stated there are many special events taking place this year, these events  
    bring a lot of visitors to the City of Piqua. The St. Patrick’s Day Race started today at 6:30 P.M. and  
    there were hundreds of visitors in town attending the race and eating in the restaurants.  City  
    Manager Huff further stated he is looking forward to all of the events this year that are going to fill  
    the stores and restaurants with visitors. 
 
    Commissioners Comments 
 
    Commissioner Martin inquired about paving in the Shawnee neighborhood, and if some top coat  
    could be put on until the paving can be done.  City Manager Huff stated they will continue to do  
    work on the streets, and plan to get the street by the Pump Station completed this year. 
 
    Commissioner Terry stated she has received complaints about drivers making rolling stops at the  
    intersection of High and College Street, and asked if it would be possible to have police presence in 
    that area from time to time to observe the traffic. 
 
    Commissioner Terry also mention she has had complaints about the five green houses located in  
    the area of High and College Street. It seems there is a large amount of trash sitting on one of the  
    porches of one of the homes, and would like to have someone address the trash issue if possible. 
 
    Commissioner Wilson congratulated Bill Collins on his retirement and his twenty-five years of  
    service to the Piqua Police Department, and the citizens of Piqua. 
 
    Mayor Fess read Officer Bill Collins Resolution of Appreciation in full and presented it Police Chief  
   Jamison and Deputy Chief Grove asking they see that Mr. Collins receives the resolution. 
 
    Mayor Fess stated she has spoken with Chris Schmiesing and plans for the Rock Piqua Concerts  
    are moving forward, and she is excited.  The concert series was so well accepted last year, and  
    there are a lot of people looking forward to the concerts again this year. 
 
    Mayor Fess stated on behalf of the City Commission she wanted to extend their deepest sympathy  
    to Assistant City Manager/Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple and her family on the loss of her   
    mother. 
  
 
     
 
 



 6

      Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the Regular 
      Commission Meeting at 8:10 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, and Terry. Nay: None. 

 
 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-60-15 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                  PUBLIC SERVICE OF KENNETH C. WATSON, JR. 
      AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Kenneth C. Watson, Jr. has retired as Journeyman Line Crew Leader 
with the Power Department; and 
 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows 27 years of faithful and dedicated service to the 
City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of  
Kenneth C. Watson, Jr. as Journeyman Line Crew Leader with the Power Department, 
this Commission tenders its unanimous and respectful tribute by this Resolution, which 
shall be a matter of public and permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-61-15 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                         PUBLIC SERVICE OF DAVID A. SHORT 
      AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, David A. Short has retired as Police Officer with the Police 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows 21 years of faithful and dedicated service to the 
City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of  
David A. Short as Police Officer with the Police Department, this Commission tenders its 
unanimous and respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of public and 
permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  4-15 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 94.21 
OF THE PIQUA CODE, RELATING TO FEES FOR 

USE OF PARK FACILITIES 
 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the 
majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 SEC. 1: Section 94.21 (Fees for Use of Park Facilities), of the Piqua Code is 
hereby amended per Exhibit “A” attached hereto: 
 
 SEC 2:  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 1st Reading 3-3-2015 
 2ND Reading 3-17-2015 
             
        _____________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: ______________________ 
     REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 
RESOLUTION NO. R-33-15 

(Tabled 3-3-2015) 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE 
ORDER TO THE KE ROSE COMPANY FOR 
PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF SPECIALIZED 
EQUIPMENT IN POLICE VEHICLES 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Police Department requires the purchase and 
installation of specialized police vehicle equipment to fulfill their duties to the citizens 
of the City of Piqua, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has budgeted for replacement of Police vehicle 
equipment, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Piqua Police Department has determined for reasons of 
standardization to use the KE Rose Company for the purchase, transfer and 
installation of Police vehicle equipment pursuant to PCO 34.19(C); 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 
 SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to the KE Rose 
Company, Huber Heights, Ohio, for purchase, transfer and installation of Police 
vehicle equipment not to exceed $40,567. 
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrant on the appropriate account of the City 
treasury in payment for said equipment purchase. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
TABLED 3-3-2015 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 









                                       
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION  NO.  R-62-15 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT TO PERMIT THE USAGE 
OF A PORTION OF LOCK NINE PARK AND LINEAR PARK TO 

MAINSTREET PIQUA 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to permit Mainstreet 
Piqua on August 22, 2015 to use Lock Nine Park and Linear Park as the location of 
the Down a River Down a Beer – Recreational Trail Celebration Event, upon the 
condition that Mainstreet Piqua obtains liability insurance satisfactory to the City 
Manager at a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 and complies with the terms of the 
attached Lease Agreement.  The rental fee for this lease shall be $1.00 and other 
valuable consideration. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

Commission Agenda      Item # 6  
Staff Report 

MEETING DATE March 12, 2015  

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
A LEASE AGREEMENT TO PERMIT THE USAGE OF A PORTION OF 
LOCK NINE PARK AND LINEAR PARK TO MAINSTREET PIQUA 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The Down a River Down a Beer – Recreational Trial Celebration is an event 
that aims to… 

 Attract people to the riverfront area to raise the profile of the water trail 
and the recreational trail system. 

 Offer samplings of a variety of beer and food, with the food product 
highlighting local restaurants. 

 Includes a musical performer that adds to the quality of the experience. 

 Raises funds to support the maintenance and promotion of the river 
corridor and the recreational trail system. 

The event organizers will collaborate with local supporters to organize and 
provide a high quality outdoor beer and food tasting event that also offers 
attendees an opportunity to experience and or witness canoeing, kayaking, and 
stand up paddle boarding on the Great Miami River water trail, and the 
demonstration of cycling equipment on the recreational trail.  

The event organizers will be responsible for the general coordination of the 
event and solicitation of sponsorships and volunteer support. Mainstreet Piqua 
and the Piqua Arts Council will serve as the contracting/fiduciary agent and be 
compensated for their expenses and receive recognition as part of the 
promotion, production, and execution of the event. Any monetary gain from the 
event will directed to a predetermined item or cause in support of the 
maintenance and promotion of river corridor and the recreational trail system. 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 



Source of Funds:  

Narrative:  
These type of community events contribute positively to a 
community’s quality of life and the local economy.  

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the resolution to authorize the lease. 

2. Defeat the resolution and deny the lease. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 7, 2015 Regular City Commission meetings.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 1. Resolution and lease agreement  

 



DOWN THE RIVER, DOWN A BEER 

RECREATIONAL TRAIL CELEBRATION EVENT  

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Page 1 
 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this   day of      ___ 2015, 
by and between the City of Piqua (CITY) and Mainstreet Piqua (ASSOCIATION) as follows: 
 
Section 1:  For one dollar and other valuable consideration, the City leases to the Association 
on the days of August 22, 2015, the Lock Nine Park public park facilities, as more specifically 
shown on the attached Exhibit ‘A’. 
 
Section 2:  The Association shall occupy and use the leased premises solely for the purposes 
of the Down the River, Down a Beer – Recreational Trail Celebration event and related 
activities, with the area to be occupied more specifically shown on the attached Exhibit ‘A’, 
and the event activities more specifically described on the attached Exhibit ‘B’. 
 
Section 3:  The Association shall obtain liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager at 
a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per event or $3,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or 
property damage or for liability for acts of the Association or its agents, employees, licensees, 
or invitees, including operations, products and contemplated operations.  Proof of coverage 
shall be provided to the City of Piqua.   

 
The association will include the following as additional insureds:  The City of Piqua, Ohio, its 
elected and appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions 
and/or authorities and board members including employees, agents and volunteers thereof.  
Coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds and not contributing with any other 
insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds whether other available 
coverage be primary, contributing, or excess. 
 
The City of Piqua shall be issued a certificate of insurance in the amount not less than stated 
above.  The certificate of insurance shall specify that the City of Piqua, its elected of and 
appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and board members including employees, agents and volunteers thereof are added 
by endorsement as additional insureds. 
 
All performers and vendors at the celebration shall provide proof of liability coverage in the 
same amount and include the City of Piqua as an additional insured.  The Association shall 
not permit any performer or vendor without the proper liability insurance coverage. 
 
Section 4:  The Association shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City of Piqua, 
Ohio, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers against any and all liability, loss, costs, 
damages, expenses, claims or actions, including attorney’s fees which the City of Piqua, Ohio, 
its officers, employees, agents and volunteers may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to 
pay, arising out of or by any act or omission of the Association, the City of Piqua, Ohio, their 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers, in the execution, performance or failure to 
adequately perform Association’s or City of Piqua’s obligations pursuant to this contract. 



DOWN THE RIVER, DOWN A BEER 

RECREATIONAL TRAIL CELEBRATION EVENT  

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Page 2 
 

Section 5:  The Association, its assigns, heirs, successors, employees and any and all 
subcontractors are independent contractors and are not agents and/or employees of the City of 
Piqua.   
 
Section 6:  This agreement shall not be assignable.  
 
Section 7:  The Association and all performers and vendors shall comply with all inspections 
and obtain any permits required prior to operation, at the Association’s expense. 
 
Section 8:  No Association contract with any performer or vendor shall place any liability 
upon the City. 
 
Section 9:  The Association shall be responsible for basic clean-up of the facilities after the 
conclusion of the Down the River, Down a Beer – Recreational Trail Celebration event. 
 
Executed as of the above-referenced date by: 
 
 
 
CITY OF PIQUA  MAINSTREET PIQUA 

   

Gary A. Huff, City Manager  Lorna Swisher, Executive Director 



Down the River, Down a Beer - Recreational Trail Celebration Event  
 

Page 1 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Vision  

An event that…  

 Attracts people to the riverfront area to raise the profile of the water trail and the recreational trail 
system. 

 Offers samplings of a variety of beer and food, with the food product highlighting local restaurants. 
 Includes a musical performer that adds to the quality of the experience. 
 Raises funds to support the maintenance and promotion of the river corridor and the recreational trail 

system. 
 

Program Concept  

The event organizers will collaborate with local supporters to organize and provide a high quality outdoor beer 
and food tasting event that also offers attendees an opportunity to experience and or witness canoeing, 
kayaking, and stand up paddle boarding on the Great Miami River water trail, and the demonstration of cycling 
equipment on the recreational trail.  The beer and food tasting will take place in a defined area of Lock Nine 
Park along the Great Miami River and Recreational Trail.  Water based and recreational trail activities will 
happen near Lock Nine Park on the Great Miami River and the recreational trail.        

The event organizers will be responsible for the general coordination of the event and solicitation of 
sponsorships and volunteer support.   Mainstreet Piqua and the Piqua Arts council will serve as the contracting 
and fiduciary agent and be compensated for their expenses and receive recognition as part of the promotion, 
production, and execution of the event.  Any monetary gain from the event will directed to a predetermined 
item or cause in support of the maintenance and promotion of river corridor and the recreational trail system.   

It is envisioned the program scope and coordination efforts will work as follows: 

Location 

The location of the event will be at the bend in the Great Miami River near where the river intersects with 
the multi-use recreational trail and in close proximity to the downtown area (the Lock Nine Park and 
surrounding area).  The event will be rain or shine with an alternative indoor venue to be identified if 
deemed necessary in the event of inclement weather.   

Dates/Times 

The event will be held on Saturday, August 22, 2015 and the recreation activities will begin early 
afternoon, and the beer and food tasting and musical entertainment will begin at approximately 4:00 p.m. 
and conclude by approximately 7:00 p.m.   

Food 



Down the River, Down a Beer - Recreational Trail Celebration Event  
 

Page 2 
 

EXHIBIT B 

The event will be used to showcase signature food items prepared and provided by locally owned and 
operated restaurants.  Restaurateurs with experience pairing food items that pair well with alcoholic 
beverages will be the preferred choice to provide food service at the event.  The goal is to cross promote 
local restaurant establishments that are most likely to appeal to the event audience so that the local 
business may realize greater brand awareness as a result of participating in the event.   

Should there be a lack of interest or desirable options available locally, other vendors providing quality 
food items deemed suitable for the event will be considered.  Service clubs, church groups, and other not-
for profit organizations that offer food items as a fundraiser for their organization are not necessarily the 
targeted food vendors for this event.   

The food vendors permitted to provide food service and the types of foods to be offered at each event will 
be at the discretion of the event organizers.  The event organizers will identify food vendors that may be 
suitable for the scale, location, and budget defined for the event and come to a consensus on the 
appropriateness of a particular vendor before any entity is contracted to offer food service. 

Drink 

The event will include a variety of beer offered in sample serving sizes.  The event organizers will secure 
the beer through wholesale distributors and will determine the beer options best suited for the event.  

Other 

The event will require a temporary liquor license and modest equipment rentals, advertising, portable 
restrooms, portable barricades, and other incidental items. 

Sponsorships 

The goal is secure sponsorships that will allow the event expenses to be revenue neutral and  all ticket sale  
proceeds to be directed to the item or cause of the event organizers’ choosing. 

Sponsorship levels include: Brewery $2,500, Barrel $1,000, Keg $500, Case $250, 6-Pack $100 

 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

 

 
 



                                           RESOLUTION NO. R-63-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A THREE YEAR LEASE WITH  
PIQUA YOUTH BASEBALL AND SOFTBALL ASSOCIATION (PYBSA)  

 
 
WHEREAS, the City has leased the baseball fields and concession stand at 

Pitsenbarger Park to the Piqua Youth Baseball and Softball Association (PYBSA) with 
the last lease having expired; and  
 

WHEREAS, the PYBSA desires to renew the lease, benefitting the youth of the 
City of Piqua; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to lease the baseball fields and concession stand for 

a period of three years. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a Lease in 
substantially the same form as attached Exhibit A with the Piqua Youth Baseball and 
Softball Association (PYBSA) for the use of the soccer fields at Pitsenbarger Park.   

 
SECTION 2.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

 
 
        ________________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



 

 

CITY OF PIQUA 
LEASE 

 
 The City of Piqua, Ohio, the Lessor, in consideration of the rents and covenants 
herein after stipulated to be paid and performed by the Piqua Youth Baseball and 
Softball Association of Piqua, Ohio, the Lessee, does hereby grant, demise, let and 
lease unto the said Lessee, the premises described as the baseball fields and 
concession stand located at Pitsenbarger Park. 
 
 To have to hold the same with the appurtenances, unto the said Lessee for and 
during a term of three (3) years from the first day of March, 2015 until the last day of 
February, 2018. 
 
 Yielding and paying therefore, during the term aforesaid, the yearly rent of One 
Dollar ($1.00) payable in advance, on the first day of March each year of this lease.  
The Lease payment shall be payable to the Lessor at the Piqua Municipal Complex, 201 
West Water Street.  
 
 And said Lessee does hereby covenant and agree with said Lessor as follows: 
 
1. That the Lessee will pay said rent in the manner aforesaid. 
 
2. That the Lessee will use and occupy said premises in a careful, safe and proper 

manner and will indemnify and hold the City, its officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers harmless from any liability growing out of the use of said premises by 
said Lessee.  All participants and Piqua Youth Baseball and Softball Association 
activities shall sign a release and waive all claims against the City, its officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers. 

 
3. That said Lessee will not use or occupy said premises for any purpose other than 

for use of promotion of the Piqua Youth Baseball and Softball Association 
program in the City of Piqua and shall have use of said premises for only so long 
as they maintain the Piqua Youth Baseball and Softball Association program. 

 
4. That the Lessee may have full control and use of said premises for the duration 

of the contract.  That anyone using said premises without the written consent of 
the Lessee or Lessor is in violation of the said premises and that either party will 
have the right to remove said violators from the premises.  That the Piqua Youth 
Baseball and Softball Association retain the approval of the city to construct 
gates on all of the baseball fields under this lease.  Also, the Piqua Youth 
Baseball and Softball Association shall be given approval to place locks on gates 
to keep better control of the play on these fields and shall leave at least one (1) 
field unlocked for public use if field conditions and required maintenance of said 
fields permit unregulated use. 

 
 Any fences constructed on the property shall be deemed fixtures and shall 

remain with the land upon termination of this Lease unless Lessor permits the 
removal of any fencing. 



 

 

 
5. That any failure of the Lessor to enforce rights or seek remedies upon any 

default of the Lessee with respect to the obligations of the Lessee hereunder, or 
any of them, shall not prejudice or affect the rights or remedies of the Lessor in 
the event of any subsequent default of the Lessee. 

 
6. Tenant will keep the interior and exterior of the Leased Premises in a safe, clean 

and orderly state at all times and will not store any refuse, trash, toxic or 
hazardous materials or wastes in or around the structures or on the Premises.  
The Lessee will ensure restrooms are kept safe and clean during their events 
and will inform the Lessor of any maintenance needs.  Lessor will provide a 
dumpster. 

 
7. The Lessee agrees to accept the Premises in its present "as-is" condition and 

shall maintain the leased premises in a safe condition at all times.  Lessee shall 
have the right to install, attach, affix or otherwise place in or upon the premises 
any and all structures, appurtenances, equipment and signs deemed by it to be 
necessary for its proper use of the Leased Premises provided conformance with 
all applicable laws and regulations; provided, however, that Lessee shall make 
no exterior alterations which attach, affix or deface the exterior of the Premises 
without the prior approval of Lessor, which approval shall not unreasonably be 
withheld.   

 
Lessor agrees to provide water, wastewater and electric service to Lessee at no 
charge.  Lessor also agrees to repair/replace any exterior lighting fixtures for ball 
fields and security with like or similar fixtures at no charge.  No third party shall 
repair or perform any work on the ball field lighting fixtures w/o the City’s prior 
approval.  If appropriations permit, Lessor will assist in maintaining and repairing 
the concession stand building identified in Exhibit A and possessing the address 
of 1517 South Street for utility billing purposes.  The Lessor will also assist in the 
maintenance of ball field fencing.  All other structures, facilities and equipment 
are the responsibility of the Piqua Youth Baseball and Softball Association.  The 
Lessee will submit written request for assistance with the maintenance and repair 
for the building at lease three weeks in advance for minor repairs and by July 1st 
of each year for the following calendar year for any major repairs and 
renovations.  The submittals of requests for major repair and renovations will not 
necessarily guarantee the receiving of appropriations for work desired but will 
serve as input for the preparation and execution of the Lessor’s annual operating 
and capital budgets for the following year.  Lessee shall maintain insurance to 
provide coverage for loss or damage to any of its property stored or kept on the 
leased premises.  Lessee shall indemnify Lessor for any negligence of 
maintenance of said premises.  
 
In the event of termination or expiration of this lease, any or all said 
improvements, structures, appurtenances, equipment and/or signs affixed to the 
structures and Premises may, at City’s sole option, be considered abandoned by 
the Lessee and become the property of the City. 

 



 

 

8. Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or loss to Lessee’s property 
located on the leased premises.  All fixtures installed by Lessee and all 
equipment, stock, supplies and all personal property of any kind or description 
whatsoever in the Leased Premises belonging to Lessee, shall be at Lessee's 
sole risk and City shall not be liable for any damage done to or loss of such 
property or loss suffered by the business or occupation of Tenant regardless of 
the cause of such damage or loss, unless City's employee, agents or 
independent contractors negligence was the sole proximate cause of such 
damage or loss. 

 
9. The Lessee agrees to assume full responsibility of operating a youth baseball 

and softball program for the City of Piqua which includes all administration, 
staffing, concessions and field and structure maintenance. 

 
10.   That the Lessee, shall not assign this lease or in any manner sublet the 

premises: Lessee may enter into field use agreements with local youth baseball 
or softball organizations, which share or reimburse Lessee expenses for 
maintaining or operating the premise through cash or in-kind contributions, with 
permission of the City Manager or designee. 

 
11. Lessor shall have the right to have access to the Leased Premises at reasonable 

times and for reasonable purposes and to utilize the Leased Premise for public 
events, subject to availability of the facility, at no cost to the City and without 
liability to Lessee.   

 
12. That the Lessee agrees to obtain insurance for the protection of the City and the 

Lessee and to the satisfaction of the City Manager for not less than One Million 
($1,000,000) per claim and Three Million ($3,000,000) per incident and the 
Lessee file a Certificate of Insurance with the City on an annual basis as the 
coverage is placed each year.  Lessor, its employees, agents, volunteers, all 
boards, commissions, and/or authorities and board members, including 
employees, agents and volunteers thereof shall be an additional insured and the 
Certificate shall state that this insurance coverage shall serve as Primary to the 
Additional Insureds and not contributing with any other insurance or self-
insurance available to the Additional Insureds.  The limits of liability shall be 
adjusted as needed during the term of the Lease by agreement of the Lessor and 
Lessee and in conformity with the then prevailing custom of insuring liability in 
the State of Ohio.  Lessee agrees to cause each insurance policy carried by 
Lessee insuring Lessee’s property against loss by fire or causes covered by the 
standard extended coverage endorsements to be written in a manner so as to 
provide that the insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of 
subrogation against Lessor for any loss or damage covered by such policy.  
Lessor shall not be liable to the Lessee or any other party for any loss or damage 
caused by fire or any or the risks enumerated in the standard extended coverage 
endorsement. 

 
13. It is an essential term of this Lease that Lessee demonstrate responsible use of 

the funds and facilities entrusted to them by the community.  Therefore the 



 

 

Lessee will have a professional financial audit performed annually and provide 
Lessor with a copy of the findings. 

 
14. Lessor may appoint an oversight committee to ensure the terms of the Lease are 

being met.  Lessor may terminate this Agreement should Lessee violate any of 
the provisions contained herein.  It is an essential term of this Agreement that 
Lessee provide a safe and family friendly environment at all times and failure to 
do so is cause for immediate termination of this Agreement. 

 
* Provided, however, if said Lessee shall fail to keep and perform any of the 

covenants, agreements, provisions, terms or conditions of this lease, on the part 
of the Lessee to be kept and performed, or if said Lessee shall abandon or 
vacate said premises during the term hereof, or if said Lessee shall make an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if the interest of said Lessee in said 
premises shall be sold under execution of the other legal process, it shall be 
lawful for said Lessor to enter as if this lease had not been made, and thereupon 
this lease and everything herein contained on the part of said Lessor to be done 
and performed shall cease, determine and be utterly void; without prejudice, 
however, to the Lessor’s right of action for breach of covenant.  The 
commencement of a proceeding or suit in forcible entry and detainer or in 
ejectment, or otherwise, after any default by the Lessee, shall be equivalent, or 
otherwise, after any default by the Lessee, shall be equivalent in every respect to 
actual entry by the Lessor. 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have hereunto executed this 
Lease as of the _________ day of _______, 2015. 
 
WITNESS:      Lessor:  
      City of Piqua 
 
 
____________________________ By:______________________________ 
      Gary A. Huff, City Manager 
 
      Date:_______________________________ 
 
 
 
WITNESS:      Lessee:  
 
____________________________ _______________________________ 

Piqua Youth Baseball Association  
      President 
 
 
      Date:________________________________ 
 



 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Stacy Wall 
Law Director 
 
 
 
 





 

 

 

 

AG

 

 

ME

RE

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN

 

 
E 

 
APRIL 7

E 

 

A R

Y Name &
Departm

N 

 
Conse

S 

City M
Asst. 
Depar

 

D 

 

 

The Pow
capacity
provide 
custome
started a
arise.  O
requires 
generatin
penalty t

The opti
to highe
power su

#9 Gas tu
purchase
and inle
replacem

The Pow
Braden m
gas turb
and fabr
experien
gas turbi

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

7th, 2015 

RESOLUTIO
FABRICA

AND

& Title:  Bob 
ment: Power 

ent 

Manager 
City Manag
rtment Direc

wer System 
y resource bi
a significant
rs over $1,0

and are able t
Our agreeme

an annual f
ng.  Failure 
to the City th

ion to not rep
er electric co
upply with o

urbine is a 1
ed "used" by
et ductwork 
ment is badly

wer System
manufacturin
ine rebuild. 
rication of 

nce, they hav
ine industry.

mmissi
ff Repo

ON AWARD
ATORS FOR
D INLET SY

Bowman, A
System 
 

Ordinanc

ger/Developm
ctor; Ed Krie

owns and 
id into the P
t economic b
00,000 annu
to serve ove

ent with PJM
full load tes
to comply, 

hough forfei

pair #9 gas t
osts and elim
our own gene

1966 16.5 M
y the Power

has perfor
y needed. 

m is familiar
ng as they p
Consolidate
critical syst
ve establish
. 

ion Ag
ort 

DING A CON
R THE PURC
YSTEM FOR

Asst. Power S

ce 
 

ment 
eger 

operates tw
PJM Region
benefit to Piq
ually.  In add
er half of the 
M, through A
st to verify t

when reque
iture of accru

turbine will 
minate the p
eration resou

Megawatt We
r System in 
rmed well b

r with Cons
provided the 
ed Fabricato
tems for ga

hed themselv

genda  

NTRACT TO
CHASE OF A
R #9 GAS TU

System Dire

Resolution 

Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other: Ener

wo combusti
nal Transmis
qua custome
dition, the ga
 City‘s elect
American M
that the gas
ested, result
ued savings.

subject the C
possibility o
urce. 

estinghouse 
1987. The 

but has rea

solidated Fa
new exhaus

ors is the wo
as turbines. 
ves as the m

Item

          

O CONSOLID
AN EXHAUS
URBINE 

ector 

 
Re

Manager/Fin
or 
rgy Board 

ion gas turb
ssion Organ
ers effectivel
as turbines c
tric load, sho

Municipal Po
s turbines ar
s in signific
.   

City’s electr
of backing u

191 combus
existing exh

ached a poin

abricators a
st and diffus
orld leader i
With over 

most trusted 

m #8 

 

DATED 
ST 

gular 

nance 

bines.  As a
nization, they
ly saving ou
can be black
ould the need
ower (AMP)
re capable o
cant financia

ric customer
up the City’

stion turbine
haust plenum
nt where it

a division o
ser for the #8
in the design
40 years o
name in the

a 
y 

ur 
k-
d 
), 
f 

al 

s 
s 

e, 
m 
s 

f 
8 
n 
f 
e 



 

 

BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Budgeted $:  $400,000 

Expenditure $:  $331,000 

Source of Funds: Power System (190-3313) 

Narrative:  Included in the 2015 Power System budget is $400,000 for a 
new exhaust and inlet system for #9 GT. Resolution No. R-
64-15 has a not to exceed price of $331,000.  

 

 

OPTIONS 

 

 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-64-15 awarding a contract to Consolidated 
Fabricators for the purchase of an exhaust and inlet system for #9 GT. 

2. Do not approve Resolution No. R-64-15 and provide staff with further 
direction. 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The Power System’s project timeline is to purchase the inlet and exhaust system 
in 2015.  We will install this new system in spring of 2016 during our planned 
maintenance downtime. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Approve Resolution No. R-64-15 awarding a contract to Consolidate 
Fabricators for the purchase of an exhaust and inlet system for #9 GT. 

ATTACHMENTS  Inlet & Exhaust System Drawing 

 





RESOLUTION NO. R–65-15 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO 

FRANKLIN EQUIPMENT LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF A NEW 
WHEEL LOADER FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Piqua Public Works Department desires to purchase a new wheel loader; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua provided for the purchase of a new wheel loader in the 2015 
budget appropriations; 
 
 WHEREAS, the formal bid document was properly advertised and opened on March 19, 
2015 and the bid results are shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Franklin Equipment LLC for the 
purchase of a new wheel loader according to the bid received; 
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is hereby authorized to 
draw her warrants from time to time from the Parks Fund (Fund 105) in the amount of $62,559.45 
using the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 9
 

Commission Agenda        
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
April 7, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER FOR 
FRANKLIN EQUIPMENT LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF A NEW 
WHEEL LOADER FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Doug Harter, Public Works Director 
 
Department: Public Works Department 
 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

 
The Public Works Department would like to purchase a 2015 Wheel Loader 
for the Parks Dept.  We included several options such as, a salt spreader, snow 
blower, snow blade and narrowing kit.  This will allow us to clean city 
sidewalks much more efficiently than we can now. 
 
The loader will come with a heated/Ac cab.  It has a high flow hydraulic 
system that will allow us to use turf and landscape attachments we have for 
our Bobcat. Some of the attachments we will utilize are the rock hound, soil 
conditioner, auger, asphalt planer for walking trail maintenance, grapple 
bucket, and loading forks.  We will use this to maintain our playground 
mulch, for turf renovation and enhancements, planting trees, and other parks 
maintenance. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $76,554.00 for the 2015 year 
Expenditure $:  $62,559.45 
Source of Funds:  105-015-880-8805 

 
 

OPTIONS 
 

1. Approve Resolution R-65-15 as presented. 
2. Approve Resolution R-65-15 with changes. 
3. Deny Resolution R-65-15 and offer staff an alternative. 

 
 PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
Our new wheel loader would be ordered right away and delivery would be 
expected within 45 days.  We would anticipate having the wheel loader before 
the end of May.   
 



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
We support the passage of this Resolution. 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

 
Exhibit “A” –  Bid Tabulation 
 

 



































RESOLUTION NO.  R-67-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
TO GRISSOM CONSTRUCTION, LLC FOR 
THE SIDEWALK ADA COMPLIANCE 
PROGRAM 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on January 6, 2015, this Commission passed Resolution No. 
R-6-15 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the Sidewalk ADA Compliance Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 

tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

 
SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with Grissom Construction, LLC 

as the lowest, responsible bidder for the Sidewalk ADA Compliance Program and the 
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to 
contract specifications.  

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 

hereby authorized to draw her warrant from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$95,000. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 11
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
April 7, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Grissom Construction, LLC for the 
Sidewalk ADA Compliance Program. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy L. Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
On March 30, 2015, four bids were received for the Sidewalk ADA Compliance 
Program (see attached Exhibit A).  In general, the work will consist of the 
replacement of 23 catch basins and the installation of 26 ADA compliant 
handicap ramps at intersections along the streets to be resurfaced as a part of the 
2015 Street Resurfacing Program.    
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $120,000 -  Engineer’s Estimate 
Expenditure $:  $95,000  (includes 10% contingency) 
Source of Funds: Street Funds and Storm Water Funds 
Narrative:  This resolution includes a 10% contingency for items of 

work which may be required which are not included in 
the original plans and specifications.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution and complete our 2015 Sidewalk ADA Compliance 
Program. 

2. Do not approve the resolution and do not complete the handicap ramp 
installation and ultimately, do not complete the 2015 Street Resurfacing 
Program.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The work will begin as soon as possible and has a completion date of June 12, 
2015.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve the resolution to allow for the completion of the Sidewalk ADA 
Compliance Program 

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation (Exhibit A) 

 



 2
01

5 
S

id
ew

al
k 

A
D

A
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
B

id
 T

ab
E

xh
ib

it
 A

It
em

Q
u

an
ti

ty
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
si

o
n

P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
o

n
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
si

o
n

P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
o

n

It
em

 L
is

t 
A

 -
 B

as
e 

B
id

20
2 

- 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 W

A
LK

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
 -

 S
F

3,
37

0.
00

   
   

 
1.

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

4,
21

2.
50

$ 
   

  
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
74

0.
00

$ 
   

  
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
74

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

5,
05

5.
00

$ 
   

  

20
2 

- 
C

U
R

B
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

, C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

IQ
U

A
 T

Y
P

E
 1

 &
 T

Y
P

E
 2

 -
 L

F
43

5.
10

   
   

   
 

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

61
0.

60
$ 

   
  

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
3,

48
0.

80
$ 

   
  

15
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
52

6.
50

$ 
   

  
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

3,
48

0.
80

$ 
   

  

20
2 

- 
C

U
R

B
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

, T
Y

P
E

 6
 -

 L
F

18
0.

10
   

   
   

 
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
08

0.
60

$ 
   

  
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
44

0.
80

$ 
   

  
13

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

34
1.

30
$ 

   
  

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

44
0.

80
$ 

   
  

20
2 

- 
C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
, T

Y
P

E
 1

 -
 E

A
C

H
23

.0
0

   
   

   
   

32
5.

00
$ 

   
   

  
7,

47
5.

00
$ 

   
  

25
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
5,

75
0.

00
$ 

   
  

30
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
6,

90
0.

00
$ 

   
  

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
13

,8
00

.0
0

$ 
   

61
1 

- 
C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

D
, C

IT
Y

 O
F

 P
IQ

U
A

 T
Y

P
E

 1
, W

/ T
Y

P
E

 #
1 

C
U

R
B

 B
A

C
K

, T
Y

P
E

 R
 G

R
A

T
E

 -
 E

A
C

H
18

.0
0

   
   

   
   

1,
15

0.
00

$ 
  

  
 

20
,7

00
.0

0
$ 

   
1,

25
0.

00
$ 

   
  

22
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
1,

75
0.

00
$ 

   
  

31
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
1,

90
0.

00
$ 

   
  

34
,2

00
.0

0
$ 

   

61
1 

- 
C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

D
, C

IT
Y

 O
F

 P
IQ

U
A

 T
Y

P
E

 1
, W

/ T
Y

P
E

 #
2 

C
U

R
B

 B
A

C
K

, T
Y

P
E

 R
 G

R
A

T
E

 -
 E

A
C

H
2.

00
   

   
   

   
  

1,
15

0.
00

$ 
  

  
 

2,
30

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

25
0.

00
$ 

   
  

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

75
0.

00
$ 

   
  

3,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

90
0.

00
$ 

   
  

3,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

  

61
1 

- 
C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

D
, C

IT
Y

 O
F

 P
IQ

U
A

 T
Y

P
E

 1
, W

/ T
Y

P
E

 #
6 

C
U

R
B

 B
A

C
K

, T
Y

P
E

 R
 G

R
A

T
E

 -
 E

A
C

H
1.

00
   

   
   

   
  

1,
15

0.
00

$ 
  

  
 

1,
15

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

25
0.

00
$ 

   
  

1,
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

75
0.

00
$ 

   
  

1,
75

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

90
0.

00
$ 

   
  

1,
90

0.
00

$ 
   

  

61
1 

- 
C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

D
, C

IT
Y

 O
F

 P
IQ

U
A

 T
Y

P
E

 6
, W

/ T
Y

P
E

 #
6 

C
U

R
B

 B
A

C
K

, T
Y

P
E

 R
 G

R
A

T
E

 -
 E

A
C

H
2.

00
   

   
   

   
  

1,
15

0.
00

$ 
  

  
 

2,
30

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

25
0.

00
$ 

   
  

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

75
0.

00
$ 

   
  

3,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

90
0.

00
$ 

   
  

3,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

  

60
8 

- 
4"

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

LK
, A

S
 P

E
R

 P
LA

N
 -

 S
F

10
9.

00
   

   
   

 
4.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

49
0.

50
$ 

   
   

  
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

54
5.

00
$ 

   
   

  
6.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

70
8.

50
$ 

   
   

  
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

87
2.

00
$ 

   
   

  

60
8 

- 
6"

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

LK
, A

S
 P

E
R

 P
LA

N
 -

 S
F

3,
37

7.
00

   
   

 
6.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

21
,9

50
.5

0
$ 

   
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
,2

62
.0

0
$ 

   
7.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

25
,3

27
.5

0
$ 

   
6.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

21
,9

50
.5

0
$ 

   

60
8 

- 
C

A
S

T
 IR

O
N

 C
U

R
B

 R
A

M
P

 W
/ T

R
U

N
C

A
T

E
D

 D
O

M
E

S
, A

S
 P

E
R

 P
LA

N
 -

 E
A

C
H

26
.0

0
   

   
   

   
24

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

6,
24

0.
00

$ 
   

  
30

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

7,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

  
35

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

9,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

  
27

5.
00

$ 
   

   
  

7,
15

0.
00

$ 
   

  

60
9 

- 
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 P
IQ

U
A

 T
Y

P
E

 1
 C

U
R

B
 -

 L
F

59
0.

90
   

   
   

 
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

,8
18

.0
0

$ 
   

20
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

11
,8

18
.0

0
$ 

   
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

,8
18

.0
0

$ 
   

15
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

8,
86

3.
50

$ 
   

  

60
9 

- 
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 P
IQ

U
A

 T
Y

P
E

 2
 C

U
R

B
 -

 L
F

24
.3

0
   

   
   

   
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
48

6.
00

$ 
   

   
  

20
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

48
6.

00
$ 

   
   

  
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
48

6.
00

$ 
   

   
  

16
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

38
8.

80
$ 

   
   

  

60
9 

- 
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 P
IQ

U
A

 T
Y

P
E

 6
 C

U
R

B
 -

 L
F

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
45

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

20
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

45
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
45

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

16
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

36
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  

61
4 

- 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

- 
LU

M
P

1.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
  

 
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
  

3,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

  
3,

80
0.

00
$ 

   
  

2,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

  
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
  

8,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

  
8,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
  

B
A

S
E

 B
ID

 T
O

T
A

L
84

,7
63

.7
0

$ 
   

91
,3

22
.6

0
$ 

   
11

2,
64

7.
80

$ 
 

11
5,

06
1.

40
$ 

 

G
ri

ss
o

m
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
, L

L
C

L
.J

. D
eW

ee
se

 C
o

., 
In

c.
T

.C
. H

o
lz

en
 In

c.
A

d
le

ta
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n



RESOLUTION NO. R-68-15 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINAL LEGISLATION TO  
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT  
OF TRANSPORTATION (ODOT) FOR THE CR 25A PHASE III 
RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT   

 
 

WHEREAS, on 15th day of February, 2011; the LPA enacted legislation 
proposing cooperation with the Director of Transportation for the described project:  

 
The project consists of the construction and widening of CR 25A, including turn 
lanes, curb and gutter, shared use path and closed drainage, lying within the City 
of Piqua; and 

 
WHEREAS, the LPA shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the 

above, described project as follows:  

The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent (100%) of the entire  
cost of the improvement, less the amount of Federal-aid MVRPC funds set aside 
by the Director of Transportation for the financing of this improvement from funds 
allocated by the Federal Highway Administration, U.S. Department of 
Transportation. 

 
The share of the cost of the LPA is now estimated in the amount of Six Hundred Ninety 
Seven Thousand Four Hundred Twenty Six and - - - 00/100 Dollars, ($697,426.00) less 
Ohio Public Works Commission grant (CKZ10) in the amount of Two Hundred Forty 
Four Thousand Seven Hundred Forty Three and - - - 10/100 Dollars, ($244,743.10) 
leaving a balance due of Four Hundred Fifty Two Thousand Six Hundred Eight Two and 
- - - 90/100 Dollars ($452,682.90).  For the purpose of this resolution, a 10% 
contingency has been added to the local share bringing the total to Four Hundred 
Ninety Eight Thousand and - - - 00/100 Dollars ($498,000.00), but said estimated 
amount is to be adjusted in order that the LPA’s ultimate share of said improvement 
shall correspond with said percentages of actual costs when said actual costs are 
determined; and 

 WHEREAS, The Director of Transportation has approved said legislation 
proposing cooperation and has caused to be made plans and specifications and 
an estimate of cost and expense for improving the above described highway and 
has transmitted copies of the same to this legislative authority; and  

 
WHEREAS, The LPA desires the Director of Transportation to proceed with the 

aforesaid highway improvement.



NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved: 

SEC. 1: That the estimated sum of Four Hundred Ninety Eight Thousand 
and - - - 00/100 Dollars ($498,000.00) is hereby appropriated for the improvement 
described above and the fiscal officer is hereby authorized and directed to issue an 
order on the treasurer for said sum upon the requisition of the Director of 
Transportation to pay the cost and expense of said improvement.   We hereby agree to 
assume in the first instance, the share of the cost and expense over and above the 
amount to be paid from Federal funds.  Said appropriated amount shall cover the 
estimated cost and any contingency for the actual dollar amount of the Project, which 
will be based upon advertised bids received. 

SEC. 2: That the LPA hereby requests the Director of Transportation to 
proceed with the aforesaid highway improvement.  

SEC. 3: That the LPA enter into a contract with the State, and that City 
Manager be, and is hereby authorized to execute said contract, providing for the 
payment of the LPA the sum of money set forth herein above for improving the 
described project.  

SEC. 4: That the LPA transmit to the Director of Transportation a fully 
executed copy of this Resolution.  This is to certify that we have compared the 
foregoing copy of Resolution with the original record thereof, found in the record of the 
proceedings of the LPA, and which Resolution was duly passed by the LPA on the 15th 
day of February, 2011, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the record of 
said Resolution and the action of said LPA thereon. 

SEC. 5: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
            

 
____________________________ 

      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 

PASSED:   _______________________ 

 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                  CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item #12 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE April 7, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

A resolution requesting final legislation to enter into an agreement with the 
Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the CR 25A Phase III 
Reconstruction Project.   

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

On February 15, 2011, City Commission passed a resolution authorizing the 
City Manager to enter into a preliminary agreement with ODOT for the CR 25-
A Phase III Reconstruction Project.  The City then engaged consultants to begin 
the detailed design, the environmental documents, and the right-of-way 
acquisition.  

The CR 25-A Phase III Reconstruction Project will consist of the reconstruction 
of CR 25-A from Looney Road to east of Indian Ridge Drive and will include 
new granular base, asphalt pavement, concrete curb & gutter, sidewalks, a 
multi-use path, and the installation of new storm sewer.  Project also includes 
the adjustment of existing utilities where necessary.        

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $498,000 

Expenditure $:  $498,000 

Source of Funds:  Local  (103 Fund, Water Fund, Wastewater Fund & 
Storm Water Fund) 

 Ohio Public Works Commission Grant  

 FHWA Grant (MVRPC) 

Narrative  The City has received funding from the Federal Highway 
Administration through the Miami Valley Regional 
Planning Commission in the amount of $2,800,000 for 
this project.  We have also received $244,743.10 from the 
Ohio Public Works Commission.   

While the bids are not in yet for this project, the estimated 
construction cost at this time is approximately $3.5 
million.  Therefore, the estimated local portion of the 
project is approximately $498,000.00, which includes a 



10% contingency.  If the actual bids come in higher, the 
local portion will increase.  If the bids come in lower than 
the estimate, the local portion will decrease.  Bids are due 
in on April 23, 2015. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with ODOT and 
complete the CR 25A Phase III Reconstruction Project.   

2. Deny the resolution, return the money, and do not proceed with the project. 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

The construction is scheduled to begin in June of 2015 with completion by the 
end of 2015.         

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approval of the Resolution to enter into an agreement with ODOT to allow for 
the CR 25A Phase III Reconstruction Project to proceed.    

ATTACHMENTS  Contract (Exhibit A) 

 



EXHIBIT A













RESOLUTION NO. R-69-15  
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO 
BARRETT PAVING MATERIALS, INC. FOR THE 
2015 STREET RESURFACING PROGRAM 
 

 
WHEREAS, on January 6, 2015, this Commission passed Resolution No. 

R-6-15 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to law, for 
the 2015 Street Resurfacing Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. 
as the lowest, responsible bidder for the 2015 Street Resurfacing Program and the City 
Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to contract 
specifications.  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is hereby 
authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city 
treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $365,000. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 13
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
April 7, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. for the 2015 
Street Resurfacing Program. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy L. Havenar, City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

On March 30, 2015, two bids were received for the 2015 Street Resurfacing 
Program (see attached Exhibit A).   
The streets in this year’s paving program include:    

1) Park from Sunset to Parkway 
2) Parkway from Westview to Sunset 
3) Wilshire from Britton to Westview 
4) Britton from Parkway to Westview 
5) Carol from Parkway to Westview 

Due to the favorable bid prices, the Alternate Bid will also be accepted which 
will include the resurfacing of Clifton from Sunset to Park and  Dubois from 
Sunset to Parkway 

The resurfacing project will consist of the necessary roadway base repairs and the 
overlaying of the roadway with a new asphalt surface.  The project will also 
include the placement of all new pavement markings within the project limits.    
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $360,000 for Base Bid 

Expenditure $:  $365,000 Base Bid & Alternate Bid (includes 10% 
contingency) 

Source of Funds: Street Dept. (101 Fund) and Street Income Tax (103 Fund)  

Narrative:  This resolution includes a 10% contingency for items of 
work which may be required which are not included in 
the original plans and specifications.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

1. Approve the resolution and complete our 2015 Street Resurfacing Program. 

 



 
 

2. Do not approve the resolution and do not complete street resurfacing this 
year. 

PROJECT TIMELINE It is anticipated that the street resurfacing will begin the middle of June, or once 
the 2015 Sidewalk ADA Compliance Project is completed.  All of the work is 
anticipated to be complete by July 31, 2015.       

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approve the resolution to allow for the completion of the 2015 Street 
Resurfacing Program. 

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation (Exhibit A) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 2
01

5 
S

tr
ee

t R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

B
id

 T
ab

E
xh

ib
it

 A

It
em

Q
u

an
ti

ty
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
si

o
n

P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
o

n

25
3 

- 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

A
IR

 R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
, 

24
" 

W
ID

E
 b

y 
6"

 D
E

P
T

H
, 

A
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
E

D
 -

 S
Y

 -
 S

Y
20

0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
40

.2
9

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8,

05
8.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

55
.0

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

11
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
40

7 
- 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

- 
T

A
C

K
 C

O
A

T
, 

T
R

A
C

K
LE

S
S

 @
 0

.0
7 

G
A

L 
/ 

S
Y

 -
 G

A
L 

- 
G

A
L

2,
50

4.
00

  
  

  
  

  
3.

69
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
9,

23
9.

76
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

3.
50

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8,
76

4.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
44

8 
- 

1/
2"

 A
S

P
H

A
LT

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

, 
S

C
R

A
T

C
H

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 T
Y

P
E

 1
, 

P
G

 6
4-

22
 -

 C
Y

 -
 C

Y
47

7.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
13

7.
25

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

65
,4

68
.2

5
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
13

1.
10

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

62
,5

34
.7

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
44

8 
- 

1 
1/

4"
 A

S
P

H
A

LT
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
, 

S
U

R
F

A
C

E
 C

O
U

R
S

E
 T

Y
P

E
 1

, 
P

G
 6

4-
22

 -
 C

Y
 -

 C
Y

1,
19

2.
00

  
  

  
  

  
13

7.
25

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

16
3,

60
2.

00
$ 

  
  

  
 

13
1.

10
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
15

6,
27

1.
20

$ 
  

  
  

 
60

4 
- 

S
T

O
R

M
 M

A
N

H
O

LE
 A

D
JU

S
T

E
D

 T
O

 G
R

A
D

E
 -

 E
A

 -
 E

A
40

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

35
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
14

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

37
5.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
15

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

60
4 

- 
S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

 M
A

N
H

O
LE

 A
D

JU
S

T
E

D
 T

O
 G

R
A

D
E

 -
 E

A
 -

 E
A

40
.0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
35

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

14
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
37

5.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

15
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
60

4 
- 

W
A

T
E

R
 V

A
LV

E
 A

D
JU

S
T

E
D

 T
O

 G
R

A
D

E
 -

 E
A

 -
 E

A
53

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

99
.7

5
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5,
28

6.
75

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
45

.0
0

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2,

38
5.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

61
4 

- 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

- 
LU

M
P

 -
 L

U
M

P
1.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

10
,8

62
.0

5
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
10

,8
62

.0
5

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

8,
75

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
8,

75
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

64
4 

- 
6"

 D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 L
IN

E
 -

 L
F

 -
 L

F
60

0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1.

15
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
69

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1.
15

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

69
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
64

4 
- 

24
" 

S
T

O
P

 B
A

R
 -

 L
F

 -
 L

F
21

6.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4.

85
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,

04
7.

60
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

4.
85

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
04

7.
60

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
64

4 
- 

6"
 C

R
O

S
S

W
A

LK
 L

IN
E

 -
 L

F
 -

 L
F

46
2.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2.
20

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
01

6.
40

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
2.

20
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,

01
6.

40
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

64
4 

- 
12

" 
C

R
O

S
S

W
A

LK
 L

IN
E

 -
 L

F
 -

 L
F

58
0.

80
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2.
70

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
56

8.
16

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
2.

70
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,

56
8.

16
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

64
4 

- 
4'

 E
D

G
E

 L
IN

E
 -

 L
F

38
0.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

0.
65

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

24
7.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.

65
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
24

7.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

64
4 

- 
W

O
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
6 

F
T

 -
 E

A
 -

 L
F

3.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
30

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

90
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
30

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

90
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
64

4 
- 

W
O

R
D

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

10
 F

T
 -

 E
A

 -
 L

F
1.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

35
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
35

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

35
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
35

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

66
6 

- 
P

R
U

N
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

E
E

S
, 

A
LL

 S
IZ

E
S

 -
 A

S
 D

IR
E

C
T

E
D

 -
 E

A
 -

 E
A

1.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
32

1.
57

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

32
1.

57
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
25

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

25
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

B
A

S
E

 B
ID

 T
O

T
A

L
29

6,
65

7.
54

$ 
  

  
  

 
28

5,
77

4.
06

$ 
  

  
  

 

25
3 

- 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

A
IR

 R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
, 

24
" 

W
ID

E
 B

Y
 6

" 
D

E
P

T
H

, 
A

S
 D

IR
E

C
T

E
D

 C
O

N
T

IN
G

E
N

C
Y

 -
 S

Y
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

75
.0

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

40
7 

- 
S

P
E

C
IA

L 
- 

T
A

C
K

 C
O

A
T

, 
T

R
A

C
K

LE
S

S
 @

 0
.0

7 
G

A
L 

/ 
S

Y
 -

 G
A

L
41

2.
20

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3.

50
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,

44
2.

70
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

44
8 

- 
1/

2"
 A

S
P

H
A

LT
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
, 

S
C

R
A

T
C

H
 C

O
U

R
S

E
 T

Y
P

E
 1

, 
P

G
 6

4-
22

 -
 C

Y
78

.5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

13
1.

10
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
10

,2
91

.3
5

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

44
8 

- 
1 

1/
4"

 A
S

P
H

A
LT

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

, 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 T
Y

P
E

 1
, 

P
G

 6
4-

22
 -

 C
Y

19
6.

30
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

13
1.

10
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
25

,7
34

.9
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

60
4 

- 
S

T
O

R
M

 M
A

N
H

O
LE

 A
D

JU
S

T
E

D
 T

O
 G

R
A

D
E

 -
 E

A
6.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

37
5.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2,

25
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

60
4 

- 
S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

 M
A

N
H

O
LE

 A
D

JU
S

T
E

D
 T

O
 G

R
A

D
E

 -
 E

A
7.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

37
5.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2,

62
5.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

60
4 

- 
W

A
T

E
R

 V
A

LV
E

 A
D

JU
S

T
E

D
 T

O
 G

R
A

D
E

 -
 E

A
5.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

45
.0

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

22
5.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
61

4 
- 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L 
- 

LU
M

P
1.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

60
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
60

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

64
4 

- 
6"

 D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 L
IN

E
 -

 L
F

15
0.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1.
15

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

17
2.

50
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
64

4 
- 

24
" 

S
T

O
P

 B
A

R
 -

 L
F

55
.0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4.

85
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
26

6.
75

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

64
4 

- 
6"

 C
R

O
S

S
W

A
LK

 L
IN

E
 -

 L
F

66
.0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2.

20
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
14

5.
20

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

64
4 

- 
12

" 
C

R
O

S
S

W
A

LK
 L

IN
E

 -
 L

F
17

3.
80

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2.

70
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
46

9.
26

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

64
4 

- 
4"

 E
D

G
E

 L
IN

E
 -

 L
F

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
0.

65
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
64

4 
- 

W
O

R
D

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

6 
F

T
. 

 -
 E

A
1.

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

30
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
30

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

64
4 

- 
W

O
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
10

 F
T

. 
 -

 E
A

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
55

0.
00

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

66
6 

- 
P

R
U

N
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

E
E

S
, 

A
LL

 S
IZ

E
S

 -
 A

S
 D

IR
E

C
T

E
D

 -
 E

A
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

25
0.

00
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

A
L

T
E

R
N

A
T

E
 B

ID
 T

O
T

A
L

N
O

 B
ID

44
,5

22
.6

9
$ 

  
  

  
  

 

T
O

T
A

L
 B

A
S

E
 B

ID
 +

 A
L

T
E

R
N

A
T

E
 B

ID
33

0,
29

6.
75

$ 
  

  
  

 

W
al

ls
 B

ro
s.

 A
sp

h
al

t 
C

o
.

B
ar

re
tt

 P
av

in
g

 M
at

er
ia

ls
, 

In
c

It
em

 L
is

t 
A

 -
 B

as
e 

B
id

It
em

 L
is

t 
B

 -
 A

lt
er

n
at

e 
B

id

$ 
 2

96
,6

57
.5

4 
(B

as
e 

B
id

 O
n

ly
)



RESOLUTION NO. R-70-15 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A UTILITY EASEMENT 
 TO THE CITY OF PIQUA 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has been granted a certain portion of the real 
estate for a utility easement known as Part of Inlot 5594, further described as set 
forth in Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

 WHEREAS, the land referenced in Exhibit A will be utilized by the City to 
install a new storm water sewer pipe, and to vacate the pre-existing storm water 
ditch known as the West Interceptor to Echo Lake; and 

 WHEREAS, the subject land that is to grant a utility easement by the adjacent 
land owner is valued at approximately $8,530;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to acquire said utility 
easement as described in Exhibit A to run with the life of the land and upon 
execution shall duly record said easement with the Miami County Recorder in an 
amount of $8,530, as determined by fair market value.  

 SEC. 2: The utility easement is necessary as determined by the Piqua 
Storm Water Department for the installation of the new storm sewer pipe. 

SEC. 3: The Finance Director certifies and warrants that the funds are 
available no to exceed $8,530. 

 SEC. 4:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from 
and after the earliest period allowed by law. 

 
 
      ___________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



 

 

Commission Agenda      Item #14 

Staff Report 

MEETING DATE April 7, 2015  

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A UTILITY EASMENT TO THE CITY OF 
PIQUA. 

SUBMITTED BY Devon Alexander, Storm Water Coordinator 

Storm Water Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The requested utility easement will allow for the new storm sewer pipe to be 
located adjacent to the preexisting West Interceptor Ditch. Due to site location 
and lack of site access the new storm sewer pipe has to be installed through the 
property owner’s side yard, which runs along the wooded ditch area. This 
easement will grant us the necessary allotment of land need to install the pipe. 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  $8,530 

Expenditure $:  $8,530 

Source of Funds: 411-000-175-1750 

Narrative:  
This utility easement will allow us to proceed with 
construction activities for the project.   

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the resolution to authorize the utility easement. 

2. Defeat the resolution and deny the utility easement. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 7, 2015 Regular City Commission meetings.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 1. Resolution and Exhibit (A) attached 

 



 
 
 

UTILITY EASEMENT 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Thomas F. York, hereinafter referred to as 

Grantor, in consideration of the sum of Eight Thousand Five Hundred Thirty Dollars ($8,530.00) 

and all other good and valuable consideration, paid to it by THE CITY OF PIQUA, OHIO, the 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, bargain, sell and convey to the City 

of Piqua, Ohio, hereinafter referred to as Grantee, its successors and assigns forever a storm 

sewer and drainage easement for the purpose of storm water discharge, including all 

appurtenances and connections with the right to construct, maintain, repair, use and remove the 

storm sewer, in which, said easement is described as follows:       

 
Situated in the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio and being part of Inlot 5594 as said land was 
conveyed to Thomas F. York in O.R. 543 Page 691 and being more particularly described as 
follows: 
 

Commencing at the southwest corner of Inlot 5594, said point being in the easterly right-
of-way line of Sunset Drive; 
 
Thence along said right-of-way line, N01°01’55”E a distance of 32.09 feet to the True 
Point of Beginning; 
 
Thence continuing along said easterly right-of-way line, N01°01’55”E a distance of 
51.36 feet; 
 
Thence leaving said right-of-way line and through Inlot 5594, the following seven 
courses: 
 
1.) S88°27’21”E a distance of 33.70 feet; 
2.) N61°43’12”E a distance of 34.35 feet; 
3.) N86°40’21”E a distance of 65.97 feet; 
4.) N82°37’53”E a distance of 68.28 feet; 
5.) N35°54’00”E a distance of 79.70 feet; 
6.) N28°45’21”E a distance of 96.86 feet; 
7.) N76°58’38”E a distance of 80.96 feet to a point in the east line of Inlot 5594; 

 
Thence along the east line of Inlot 5594, S01°01’55”W a distance of 75.20 feet; 
 



Thence leaving said east line and along lines through Inlot 5594, the following four 
courses: 
 
1.) S56°31’55”W a distance of 20.86 feet; 
2.) S20°31’55”W a distance of 70.86 feet; 
3.) S50°31’55”W a distance of 153.74 feet; 
4.) N88°58’05”W a distance of 208.37 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 
The above described easement containing 34,467 square feet (0.791 acres) more or less 
and being subject to easements, restrictions, and rights-of-way or record. 
 

Also, a temporary work easement being more particularly described as follows: 
 

Beginning at the southwest corner of Inlot 5594, said point being in the easterly right-of-
way line of Sunset Drive; 
 
Thence along said right-of-way line, N01°01’55”E a distance of 32.09 feet; 
 
Thence along a line through said Inlot 5594, S88°58’05”E a distance of 5.50 feet; 
 
Thence continuing along a line through said Inlot, S01°01’55”W a distance of 31.29 feet 
to a point in the south line of Inlot 5594; 
 
Thence along said south line, S82°46’25”W a distance of 5.56 feet to the Point of 
Beginning, containing 174 square feet (0.004 acres) more or less and being subject to 
easements, restrictions, and rights-of-way or record. 
 
Bearings are based on the Ohio State Place Coordinate System, South Zone. 

 
All as shown on the attached Exhibit “A”. 
 
With full right and authority to the Grantee, its successors and assigns, to enter at all times within 
the limitations of this easement for the purpose of constructing, repairing, replacing, maintaining 
and removing the storm sewer or remove any trees or other objects which at any time may 
interfere or threaten to interfere with the proper use and/or maintenance and successful operation 
of said storm sewer, provided, however, the Grantee is providing this easement subject to the 
understanding that (i) the property owner will not now or in the future be required to remove any 
buildings, facilities, sidewalks, roads, parking lots, signs or other structures currently on the 
property in order to accommodate the easement. The undersigned spouse (to the extent 
applicable) of said grantor herby releases and waives all rights of dower in said real property. 
 



Construction, repair, maintenance, operation and inspection of the storm sewer shall be limited in 

duration of time to the time that is reasonably necessary to such use by the Grantee, and the 

Grantee shall be responsible for all damage or others costs associated in connection with 

Grantee’s use, construction, repair maintenance, operation and inspection of the property. 

 

WITNESS:    Thomas F. York 

 

____________________________ ________________________________ 

Grantor 
 

     Date: ____________________________ 

 

STATE OF OHIO, COUNTY OF MIAMI, SS: 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED That on the _____ day of _______________, before me, a 

notary public in and for said county, personally came Thomas F. York, GRANTOR in the 

foregoing easement, and acknowledged that he did sign the foregoing instrument and that the 

same is their free act and deed. 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my 

official seal the day and year last mentioned above. 

 

             

   __________________________________ 

     Notary Public State of Ohio 

 

 

This instrument prepared by:  The Kleingers Group 

 

Approved as to form: 

Stacy M. Wall, Law Director 

City of Piqua, Ohio 





                                       RESOLUTION NO.  R-71-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT TO PERMIT THE USAGE 
OF A PORTION OF LOCK NINE PARK AND LINEAR PARK TO 

MAINSTREET PIQUA AND PIQUA ARTS COUNCIL 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to permit Mainstreet 
Piqua and Piqua Arts Council on June 20, 2015, July 18, 2015, and August 1, 2015 
to use Lock Nine Park and Linear Park as the location of the Rock Piqua! Riverfront 
Concert Series, upon the condition that Mainstreet Piqua and Piqua Arts Council 
obtains liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager at a minimum coverage of 
$1,000,000 and complies with the terms of the attached Lease Agreement.  The 
rental fee for this lease shall be $1.00 and other valuable consideration. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



ROCK PIQUA! RIVERFRONT CONCERT SERIES  

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Page 1 
 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this   day of      ___ 2015, 
by and between the City of Piqua (CITY) and the Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua 
(ASSOCIATION) as follows: 
 
Section 1:  For one dollar and other valuable consideration, the City leases to the Association 
on the days of June 20, 2015, July 18, 2015, and August 1, 2015 the Lock Nine Park and 
portions of the Linear Park public park facilities, and a portion of the Water Street public right 
of way from Spring Street to Harrison Street, as more specifically shown on the attached 
Exhibit ‘A’. 
 
Section 2:  The Association shall occupy and use the leased premises solely for the purposes 
of the Rock Piqua! Riverfront Concert Series and related activities, as more specifically 
shown on the attached Exhibit ‘B’. 
 
Section 3:  The Association shall obtain liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager at 
a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per event or $3,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or 
property damage or for liability for acts of the Association or its agents, employees, licensees, 
or invitees, including operations, products and contemplated operations.  Proof of coverage 
shall be provided to the City of Piqua.   

 
The association will include the following as additional insureds:  The City of Piqua, Ohio, its 
elected and appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions 
and/or authorities and board members including employees, agents and volunteers thereof.  
Coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds and not contributing with any other 
insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds whether other available 
coverage be primary, contributing, or excess. 
 
The City of Piqua shall be issued a certificate of insurance in the amount not less than stated 
above.  The certificate of insurance shall specify that the City of Piqua, its elected of and 
appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and board members including employees, agents and volunteers thereof are added 
by endorsement as additional insureds. 
 
All performers and vendors at the celebration shall provide proof of liability coverage in the 
same amount and include the City of Piqua as an additional insured.  The Association shall 
not permit any performer or vendor without the proper liability insurance coverage. 
 
Section 4:  The Association shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City of Piqua, 
Ohio, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers against any and all liability, loss, costs, 
damages, expenses, claims or actions, including attorney’s fees which the City of Piqua, Ohio, 
its officers, employees, agents and volunteers may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to 
pay, arising out of or by any act or omission of the Association, the City of Piqua, Ohio, their 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers, in the execution, performance or failure to 
adequately perform Association’s or City of Piqua’s obligations pursuant to this contract. 



ROCK PIQUA! RIVERFRONT CONCERT SERIES  

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Page 2 
 

Section 5:  The Association, its assigns, heirs, successors, employees and any and all 
subcontractors are independent contractors and are not agents and/or employees of the City of 
Piqua.   
 
Section 6:  This agreement shall not be assignable.  
 
Section 7:  The Association and all performers and vendors shall comply with all inspections 
and obtain any permits required prior to operation, including any full time or on-site security, 
at the Association’s expense. 
 
Section 8:  No Association contract with any performer or vendor shall place any liability 
upon the City. 
 
Section 9:  The Association shall be responsible for basic clean-up of the facilities after the 
conclusion of each Rock Piqua! Riverfront Concert Series event. 
 
Executed as of the above-referenced date by: 
 
 
 
CITY OF PIQUA  MAINSTREET PIQUA 

   

Gary A. Huff, City Manager  Lorna Swisher, Executive Director 

  PIQUA ARTS COUNCIL 

   

  Jordan Knepper, Executive Director 



ROCK PIQUA! Riverfront  Concert  Series  

 

Page 1 
 

EXHIBIT B

A Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua Program 

Vision  

A series of summer music events that…  

 Attracts people to the riverfront area to raise the profile of the river corridor and the recreational trail 
system. 

 Includes performers who can appeal to a wide age group and attract an audience from within and 
beyond the local community; e.g., local up and coming bands/performers from throughout the region. 

 Incorporates beer and wines sales and specialty food vendor items. 

 Raises funds to support the Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua organizations. 
 

Program Concept  

Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua will collaborate with local supporters to organize and provide a high 

quality outdoor summer music series that includes food and drink offerings.  The series of events will take 

place in an around the Lock Nine Park area near the Great Miami River for the purpose of highlighting the 

recreation opportunities that exist on and along the river corridor.    

The Rock Piqua! Riverfront Concert Series Planning Committee will be responsible for the general coordination 

of the event and solicitation of proposals and sponsorships and the committee will include representation 

from Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua and the community at large.  For the purpose of facilitating the 

event Piqua Arts Council and Mainstreet Piqua will serve as the contracting and fiduciary agencies and more or 

less share equal responsibility and or recognition and or financial gain occurring as a result of the planning, 

promotion, production, and execution of the music series of events.  The specific task and roles to be filled by 

each organization will be as determined by the Planning Committee and agreed to as reasonable and 

appropriate by the Executive Director of each agency.   

It is envisioned the program scope and coordination efforts will work as follows: 

Location 

The location of the event will be at the bend in the Great Miami River near where the river intersects with 

the multi‐use recreational trail and in close proximity to the downtown area (the Lock Nine Park and 

surrounding area). 

Dates/Times 

A series of music events will be held on multiple dates throughout the summer.  The event will take place 

on Saturday and the music performance will begin at approximately 7:00 P.M. and end at approximately 

11:00 P.M.  In general the dates will begin in June and run through early August and attempt to avoid 

conflicts with other community events or other major attractions taking place within the immediate 

region.  The determination of whether or not another event or attraction constitutes a conflict to be 

avoided will be at the discretion of the Planning Committee. 



ROCK PIQUA! Riverfront  Concert  Series  

 

Page 2 
 

EXHIBIT B

 

Performers  

The Planning Committee will identify performers that may be suitable for the scale, location, and budget 

defined for the event and come to a consensus on the appropriateness of a particular act before any talent 

is contracted to perform at any of the music series event dates.   

Food 

The event will be used to showcase signature food items prepared and provided by locally owned and 

operated restaurants.  Restaurateurs with experience pairing food items that pair well with alcoholic 

beverages will be the preferred choice to provide food service at the event.  The goal is to cross promote 

local restaurant establishments that are most likely to appeal to the event audience so that the local 

business may realize financial gain and greater brand awareness as a result of participating in the event.   

Should there be a lack of interest or desirable options available locally, other vendors providing quality 

food items deemed suitable for the event will be considered.  Service clubs, church groups, and other not‐

for profit organizations that offer food items as a fundraiser for their organization are not necessarily the 

targeted food vendors for this event.   

The number of food vendors permitted to provide food service and the types of foods to be offered at 

each event will be limited to ensure each participating vendor a greater probability of profitability.  A 

participation fee and contract determined appropriate by the Planning Committee will be required of each 

participating food vendor.  The Planning Committee will identify food vendors that may be suitable for the 

scale, location, and budget defined for the event and come to a consensus on the appropriateness of a 

particular vendor before any entity is contracted to offer food service at the music series event dates. 

Drink 

The event will include soda and water, and beer and wine sales, and the beverage sales will be used to 

provide a source of income to the event.  The Planning Committee will identify the beverage vendor option 

or options best suited for the scale, location, and budget defined for the event and come to a consensus 

on the appropriateness of a particular vendor before any entity is contracted to offer beverage service at 

any of the music series event dates.  

Other 

The event will require a temporary liquor license, security services, stage and equipment rentals, 

advertising, portable restrooms, portable barricades, and other incidental items. 

 



ROCK PIQUA! Riverfront  Concert  Series  

 

Page 3 
 

EXHIBIT B

Sponsorships 

The goal is to provide the event to the community without requiring an admission fee.  To achieve that 

goal sponsorships and other monetary support may be required.  The Planning Committee will seek 

financial support from the community as deemed necessary and appropriate. 

Roles and Responsibilities  

It is understood that for an event of this scale to be successful the roles and responsibilities of all involved in 

executing the event must be clearly defined and understood.  The following outlines the anticipated duties 

that each of the identified roles is expected to fulfill. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

Authorized Agent – Duties include providing the authoring signature on contracts and other documents to 

be executed and or provided in conjunction with the event.     

Assignment:  Piqua Arts Council 

Food Coordinator ‐ Duties include coordination with food vendors, and oversight of planning and 

execution of food preparation, sales, and clean‐up needs, incidental to the event.   

Assignment:  Mainstreet Piqua 

Beverage Coordinator ‐ Duties include coordination with beverage vendors, and oversight of planning and 

execution of beverage preparation, sales, and clean‐up needs, incidental to the event.   

Assignment:  Piqua Arts Council 

Entertainment Coordinator ‐ Duties include coordination with performing artist and audio/lighting/stage 

engineers, and oversight of planning and execution of engineer’s audio/lighting/stage set‐up, operation, 

and tear‐down, and artist’s pre‐show, in‐show, and post show needs, and any other ancillary 

entertainment activities, incidental to the event.   

Assignment:  Piqua Arts Council 

Facilities Coordinator ‐ Duties include coordination with sanitation, refuse, security, and electric service 

vendors/providers, and oversight of planning and execution of the set‐up, operation, and tear‐down, and 

security personnel pre‐show, in‐show, and post show needs, incidental to the event. 

Assignment:  Mainstreet Piqua 

Marketing Coordinator ‐ Duties include coordination of creation and publishing of print and electronic 

promotion and advertising materials, and media communication needs, incidental to the event. 

Assignment:  Piqua Arts Council/Mainstreet Piqua 

Event Volunteers ‐ Volunteers will be assigned to work under the direction of an event coordinator to 

assist with the completion of the task incidental to the coordinator’s responsibilities. 



Assig

 
 
Anticipa

 

gnment:  Mai

ated Schedule

ROCK P

nstreet Piqua

e 

PIQUA! Rive

E

a 

erfront  Co

 

Page 4 
 

EXHIBIT B

oncert  Seriies  

 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

 

 

 


	April 7, 2015
	2015 - 031715 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	res60_15
	res61_15
	ord04_15_3
	res33_15
	res33_15
	res33_15b

	res62_15
	res62_15
	res62_15b
	res62_15c
	res62_15d
	res62_15e

	res63_15
	res63_15
	res63_15b

	res64_15b
	res65_15
	res65_15
	res65_15b
	res65_15c

	res66_15
	res67_15
	res67_15
	res67_15b
	res67_15c

	res68_15
	res68_15
	res68_15b
	res68_15c

	res69_15
	res69_15
	res69_15b
	res69_15c

	res70_15
	res70_15
	res70_15b
	res70_15c
	res70_15d

	res71_15
	res71_15
	res71_15
	res71_15b
	res71_15c

	res71_15d

	res64_15 solo.pdf
	res64_15
	res64_15b
	res64_15c


